FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
12/21/2020 2:41 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON CASE NO: 99340-8

ON APPEAL FROM THE WASHINGTON STATE COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION II No. 53241-7-II

MTC FINANCIAL, INC. d/b/a TRUSTEE CORPS, trustee, BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON, f/k/a THE BANK OF NEW YORK, as trustee for THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER OF CWABS, INC. ASSET-BACKED CERTIFICATES, SERIES 2005-17,

Respondent,

V.

DAVID W. DEVIN,

Petitioner.

PETITION FOR REVIEW

DAVID W. DEVIN, ATTORNEY PRO SE

David W. Devin So 3B Ngach 50, Ngo 1194 Duoung Lang Quan Dong Da Hanoi Vietnam 0000

A. IDENTITY OF PETIONER

Petitioner is Washington citizen residing in Viet Nam where he works in Education.

He is also a residential landlord and Titled Owner of the Subject Premises.

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION

The original unpublished Court of Appeals Decision and the Decision denying reconsideration are attached at Appendix A. They are dated July 80, 2020 and November 20, 2020 respectively.

C. INTRODUCTION AND ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Plaintiff-Appellant issued a brief summary of the issues in a Supplemental briefing before the Court. In it, he noted, *inter alia*:

My four points are:

- 1. My whole appeal is because the lower court did not compel Mr. Fig to answer my 21 interrogatories after I answered to the best of my ability all 27 of his interrogatories. If Mr. Fig would have provided me and the court complete and true answers to my questions the Court would have found four compelling reasons to decide this case in my favor. They are:
- A. The BoA illegally took possession of my property in February 2009 and then gifted it back to me without asking for any money or for me to sign a new note and then then walked away and have never to this day contacted me again except to give me my loan file in January of this year=2020 which contains not one letter to me demanding payment from February 2009 to April 13, 2016. So they clearly gifted me property a fact which the lower court and the Appeals Court both refused to consider.
- B. The BONYM does not have the original note and deed of trust which they must have in order to foreclose. The reason I know this is because the BoA did not have it in February of 2009. Again both the Superior Court of Kitsap County and the Appeals Court refused to consider this very valid and should be compelling point.
- C. The Assignment of the Note and Deed of Trust is a fraudulent document in which the BoA and the BoNYM colluded to cover up that fact that it was not an arm's length legitimate sale of my note and deed of trust

1 + 8 2 v). but a reverse sale- an illegal payment to the BoNYM by the BoA to take not only my note but hundreds if not thousands of uncollected notes off the books of the BoA.

This fact as well as the fact that the person who signed this fraudulent document of behalf of MERS, Mr. Wayne Choe did not even work for MERS but was a low level employee of the BoA. This has been proved in other courts of law so I should not have to prove it to you. I assume that this court is well aware of this fact and that the reason that both the lower court and now this court have refused to sign my proposed orders is you do not want to open this can of worms and expose the truth for the world to see.

D. Mr. Deleo's Clients illegally tacked a notice of Default to the Front and back door or my house on April 13, 2016 and then organized a Trustee Sale of my property which they scheduled for January 7, 2017 without so much as sending me one notice of the sale properly served on me to the e-mail and mailing addresses which I gave them by both phone and e-mail two months prior. They sent me both e-mails and at least one package to my Hanoi address prior to this. So they have absolutely no excuse for not following the Washington State Consumer Protection Act to send me proper notice of this Trustee Sale. . So my question is: Why is this court totally ignoring the many instances of law breaking by the defendants?

My second point is that the Summary Judgment was concocted by Mr. Fig because he did not want to deal with my four solid legal arguments for deciding this case in my favor. So he somehow cleverly but dishonestly convinced the lower court judge and now this court that my case rests solely on the statute of limitations- which it clearly doesn't and since I "failed to prove that my loan had been accelerated"......

With that in mind we turn to the sole reason given for the dismissal of the Appeal based on a purported lack of Jurisdiction:

D. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

In this case we have a manifest injustice at hand with foreclosing entities operating behind a known robosigner (Wayne Choe) who was identified in a State-sponsored investigation in Florida. We have a Notice of Appeal that directly references the only Omnibus Order that was given by the Trial Court so that no one sustained any prejudice whatsoever. But yet we have a Court rejecting a case in which an innocent property owner

was wronged in the ongoing fallout from the 2008 financial crisis that was caused by corrupt banks and mortgage companies.

https://www.theatlantic.com/magazine/archive/2015/09/how-wall-streets-bankers-stayed-out-of-jail/399368/

BUSINESS

How Wall Street's Bankers Stayed Out of Jail The probes into bank fraud leading up to the financial industry's crash have been quietly closed. Is this justice?

WILLIAM D. COHAN SEPTEMBER 2015 ISSUE

Since 2009, 49 financial institutions have paid various government entities and private plaintiffs nearly \$190 billion in fines and settlements, according to an analysis by the investment bank Keefe, Bruyette & Woods. That may seem like a big number, but the money has come from shareholders, not individual bankers. (Settlements were levied on corporations, not specific employees, and paid out as corporate expenses—in some cases, tax-deductible ones.) In early 2014, just weeks after Jamie Dimon, the CEO of JPMorgan Chase, settled out of court with the Justice Department, the bank's board of directors gave him a 74 percent raise, bringing his salary to \$20 million.

The more meaningful number is how many Wall Street executives have gone to jail for playing a part in the crisis. That number is one. (Kareem Serageldin, a senior trader at Credit Suisse, is serving a 30-month sentence for inflating the value of mortgage bonds in his trading portfolio, allowing them to appear more valuable than they really were.) By way of contrast, following the savings-and-loan crisis of the 1980s, more than 1,000 bankers of all stripes were jailed for their transgressions (Appendix B).

F. ARGUMENT

I. Appellant did Indeed File a Proper Notice of Appeal.

The Lower Court held:

The order denying reconsideration did not relate to the summary judgment dismissal of his claims. Thus, RAP 2.4(c)(3) does not apply to allow this court to review the trial court's orders granting summary judgment dismissal of Devin's claims.

The Notion that Appellant did not Appeal the proper Order is patently bogus; a mistake of fact at best and a sophistry at worst:

The only ORDER the lower Court issued was an Omnibus Order that is in the Court Record and appears herein at Appendix A. It is an Omnibus Order addressing EVERYTHING PENDING, including not only the Reconsideration of the Motion to Compel, but the Summary Judgment issue.

The rule reads, in pertinent part:

(c) Final Judgment Not Designated in Notice. Except as provided in rule 2.4(b), the appellate court will review a final judgment not designated in the notice only if the notice designates an order deciding a timely motion based on (1) CR 50(a) (judgment as a matter of law), (2) CR 52(b) (amendment of findings), (3) CR 59 (reconsideration, new trial, and amendment of judgments), (4) CrR 7.4 (arrest of judgment), or (5) CrR 7.5 (new trial).

In this instance it is patently clear that the Notice of Appeal referred to an Order that included the Dismissal on the Merits. Here is a screen capture of the Final Order:

4 of s D md

1	Regarding BONYM's Motion for Summary Judgment, the court considered the
2	following pleadings:
3	 Plaintiff's Amended Complaint;
4	 BONYM's Motion for Summary Judgment;
5	 Declaration in support of BONYM's Motion for Summary Judgment;
6	 Plaintiff's Response to BONYM's Motion for Summary Judgment; and
7	 BONYM's Summary Judgment Reply Brief.
8	The court, having reviewed the above referenced pleadings and the briefing filed
9	by the parties, having heard the oral argument of the parties, and otherwise being fully
10	advised in the premises, hereby ORDERS that:
11	 Plaintiff's Motion for Reconsideration is GRANTED.
12	2. Plaintiff's Motion to Compel against BONYM is DENIED.
13	3. Plaintiff's Motion to Stay the hearing BONYM's Summary Judgment Motion is
14	DENIED.
15	It is further ORDERED & ADJUDGED that the BONYM's Motion for Summary
16	Judgment is GRANTED. Plaintiff's claims against BONYM are dismissed with
17	prejudice.
18	DATED this 3 day of
19	f(x) = f(x) = f(x)
20	Superior Court Judge

The Order addressed multiple issues including, *inter alia*, the fact that "It is further ORDERED & ADJUDGED that the BONYM's Motion for Summary Judgment is GRANTED. Plaintiff's claims against BONYM are dismissed with Prejudice.

Again:

5 of 8

II. Application of Law in the Current Legal and Social Context.

The Lower Court's reliance on talismanic requirements does not move us towards adjudication on the merits of this case, which is completely unfair given:

- a) The general history of the financial/mortgage crisis as noted above at Appendix B;
- b) The specific history of this case, including unfounded (and more importantly unproved) threats from Attorney Fig that he would make Plaintiff "eat crow" regarding an original Note that Fig never even produced. So we have the missing Note, the empty threats from opposing Counsel, the Florida investigation of Wayne Choe, and the walkaway from the house for seven (7) years. These are a perfect trifecta in and of themselves that merits a Remand from this Honorable Court. Meanwhile the cities of Seattle, Tacoma and Washington State in general continue to experience unheralded amounts of homelessness and misery.

As noted above, what else is a Plaintiff to do?

G. Conclusion.

The Lower Courts did not do substantial Justice in this case. Given the backdrop of the mortgage industry as well as the backdrop of this particular case, there is simply no way for this Court to overlook the injustice: On Remand this Court must instruct the lower Courts that this minor confusion and semantic morass does not merit ignoring the material issues at stake. It really is that simple. No longer will these banks and mortgage companies receive carte blanche to run rampant over innocent consumers and homeowners.