# FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 3/18/2021 2:23 PM BY SUSAN L. CARLSON CLERK

Case No. 99340-8

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

#### **DAVID DEVIN**

Petitioner,

٧.

MTC FINANCIAL, INC., ET. AL.

Respondents.

RESPONDENT BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON NA'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

WILLIAM G. FIG SUSSMAN SHANK LLP 1000 SW Broadway, Suite 1400 Portland, OR 97205 (503) 227-1111 wfig@sussmanshank.com

Attorneys for Bank of New York Mellon, NA

#### **

#### II. INTRODUCTION

Appellant David Devin's ("Mr. Devin") Petition for Review is not well grounded in law or fact. The Court of Appeals carefully and accurately articulated the procedural posture of the underlying Superior Court action and correctly found that, under RAP 2.4 and Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal, it had no basis to review the Superior Court's orders granting Respondents' motions for summary judgment against Mr. Devin. The Court of Appeals properly granted Respondents' Motions to Dismiss Mr. Devin's appeal and, consequently, this Court should deny Mr. Devin's Petition for Review (the "Petition" or "Mr. Devin's Petition").

#### III. ASSIGNMENT OF ERROR

None. The Court of Appeals correctly found that: (1) Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal only identified the trial court's *stand-alone* January 3, 2019 order denying his December 31, 2018 Motion for Reconsideration (it did not identify the trial court's separate summary judgment orders); and (2) the summary judgment orders were not "underlying" orders *vis a vis* Mr. Devin's December 31

Motion for Reconsideration. As a result, the Court of Appeals properly held that, under RAP 2.4, the court had no basis to review the summary judgment orders and correctly granted Respondents' RAP 17.4(d) motions to dismiss Mr. Devin's appeal.

#### IV. FACTS RELEVANT TO THE PETITION

On or about October 10, 2018, BONYM filed a motion for summary judgment seeking dismissal of Mr. Devin's claims against it. CP 277-282. In response to BONYM's motion, Mr. Devin filed a Motion to Stay Review of Defendant's Bad Faith Motion for Summary Judgment (CP 332); a Motion to Compel (CP 91-94); and a tardy, three-page Summary Judgment Response Brief (CP 295-297). On November 16, 2018, Respondent MTC Financial, Inc. ("MTC") filed a motion for summary judgment dismissal of Mr. Devin's claims against it. CP 95-100.

On November 30, 2018, the trial court heard Mr. Devin's motions to stay and compel discovery. Mr. Devin did not appear and the court denied his motions. CP 151-155. On or about December 3, 2018, Mr. Devin filed a Motion for Reconsideration of the court's denial of his motions to stay and compel. CP 156-157. On December 14, 2018, the trial court heard argument on Mr. Devin's motion for reconsideration, granted the motion, and allowed

him to provide argument to support his motions to stay and compel discovery. CP 183. At the same hearing, the trial court also heard argument on MTC's and BONYM's motions for summary judgment.

The trial court denied Mr. Devin's motions to stay and compel discovery from the bench. *Id.* The trial court also struck a "Revised Complaint" filed by Mr. Devin right before the summary judgment hearing. *Id.*; CP 161-165. The trial court took MTC's and BONYM's motions for summary judgment under advisement. CP 183.

On December 19, 2018, Mr. Devin moved for reconsideration of the trial court's denial of his motions to stay and compel discovery (CP 184-187), and he also filed a motion for the court to approve the previously stricken Revised Complaint (CP 188-189). On December 20, 2018, the court denied both motions. CP 235-236. Undeterred, on December 31, 2018, Mr. Devin filed vet another Motion for Reconsideration. This time Mr. Devin sought reconsideration of the trial court's December 20 order denying: (1) reconsideration of the court's December 14 ruling denying Mr. Devin's motions to stay and compel discovery, and (2) his December 19 motion for the court to approve the Revised Complaint. CP 237-243. On January 3, 2019, the trial court entered an order denying Mr. Devin's December 31, 2018 Motion for Reconsideration. CP 253. <sup>1</sup>

Separately, on January 3, 2019, the trial court entered two additional and separate orders granting MTC's and BONYM's motions for summary judgment to dismiss Mr. Devin's claims (the "SJ Orders"). CP 249-252 and 326-328.

Mercifully, rather than filing а fourth Motion for Reconsideration, on February 1, 2019, Mr. Devin filed a Notice of Appeal with the Court of Appeals. CP 255-257. Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal sought review of "the ORDER entered on January 3, 2019 denying his Motion for Rule 59 Relief in this matter." CP 255. The Notice of Appeal states that "[a] copy of the decision is attached to this notice." Id. Mr. Devin then attached the trial court's January 3, 2019 Order on Reconsideration denying his December 31 Motion for Reconsideration based on Mr. Devin's failure to provide a sufficient "basis for reconsideration under CR 59." CP 257.

The Court of Appeals found that the orders underlying Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal were all related to his motions for

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> It has not escaped Respondent's counsel that this paragraph sounds like part of Abbot & Costello's "Who's on First" routine.

reconsideration of the trial court's denial of his motions to stay, compel, and for the court's approval of the Revised Complaint. The underlying orders did <u>not</u> include the SJ Orders. The Court of Appeals therefore held RAP 2.4(c)(3) did not give the court authority to review the SJ Orders and, as a result, the court dismissed Mr. Devin's appeal.

#### V. ARGUMENT

#### A. Standard of Review.

Under RAP 13.4(b), "[a] petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court."

### B. Mr. Devin's Petition Does Not Meet the Criteria of RAP 13.4(b).

The Court of Appeals' opinion is not in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court or a published opinion of the Court of Appeals. Mr. Devin's Petition does not involve any constitutional

issues nor does it raise any matters of public interest. This Court should decline to accept Mr. Devin's request of a discretionary review of the Court of Appeals' decision.

## C. Under RAP 2.4, the Court of Appeals Had No Authority to Review the Superior Court's Summary Judgment Orders

The scope of the Court of Appeal's review of a trial court's decision is governed by RAP 2.4. The pertinent parts of that rule state as follows:

(a) Generally. The appellate court will, at the instance of the appellant, review the decision or parts of the decision designated in the notice of appeal or, subject to RAP 2.3(e), in the notice for discretionary review, and other decisions in the case as provided in sections (b), (c), (d), and (e).

\*\*\*

(b) Order or Ruling Not Designated in Notice. The appellate court will review a trial court order or ruling not designated in the notice, including an appealable order, if (1) the order or ruling prejudicially affects the decision designated in the notice, and (2) the order is entered, or the ruling is made, before the appellate court accepts review.

\*\*\*

(c) Final Judgment Not Designated in Notice. Except as provided in rule 2.4(b), the appellate court will review a final judgment not designated in the

notice only if the notice designates an order deciding a timely motion based on (1) CR 50(a) (judgment as a matter of law), (2) CR 52(b) (amendment of findings), (3) CR 59 (reconsideration, new trial, and amendment of judgments), (4) CR 7.4 (arrest of judgment), or (5) CR 7.5 (new trial).

The Notice of Appeal filed by Mr. Devin makes no reference to either summary judgment order nor does it attach either order. CP 255-257. Because the SJ Orders were not designated or identified in the Notice of Appeal nor attached to it, RAP 2.4(a) did not provide a basis for the Court of Appeals to review the SJ Orders.

The Court of Appeals correctly determined that RAP 2.4(b) did not apply. RAP 2.4(b) allows the consideration of orders that adversely affected the decision on appeal, *i.e.* that the order appealed from would not have happened but for the first order. See Adkins v. Aluminum Co. of Am., 110 Wash.2d 128, 134 (1988). RAP 2.4(b) assumes the proper appeal of a final decision on the merits. See Id.; See also Right-Price Recreation, LLC v. Connells Prairie Cmty. Council, 146 Wash. 2d 370, 378-380 (2002). Here, there was no proper appeal of the decision on the merits and the SJ Orders had no impact on the entry of the January 3 Order on Reconsideration, the order Mr. Devin appealed. Lastly, Mr. Devin's Petition does not raise RAP 2.4(b) as a basis under which the Court

of Appeals should have considered the SJ Motions and, therefore, waived the right to make any such argument to this Court.

The Court of Appeals correctly determined that it could only review the SJ Orders if they fell under RAP 2.4(c). Under RAP 2.4(c), on an appeal of a CR 59 motion to reconsider, the court may consider the propriety of the "underlying" order, i.e. the order upon which reconsideration was sought. See Davies v. Holy Family Hosp., 144 Wn. App. 483, 492 (2008), abrogated on other grounds by Frausto v. Yakima, HMA, LLC, 188 Wn.2d 227 (2017). Mr. Devin's December 31 Motion for Reconsideration (CP 237-243) only sought a reconsideration of his previously denied December 19 Motion for Reconsideration relating to his motions to stay and compel (CP 184-187 & 235-236), and the denial of his December 19 Motion for Court to Approve Revised Complaint (CP 188-189 & 235-236). None of Mr. Devin's plethora of motions for reconsideration sought review or reconsideration of the SJ Orders. Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal (CP 255-257) specifically and only seeks review of the trial court's January 3 Order on Reconsideration, CP 253, that specifically identifies the December 31 Motion for Reconsideration (CP 237-243). Indeed, as required by RAP 5.3(a), the Notice of Appeal attaches "a copy of the signed order or judgment from which the appeal is made", i.e. the January 3 Order on Reconsideration. CP 257.

RAP 2.4(c) does not provide that an appeal of an order for reconsideration brings up for review *all* orders entered in the subject case. That would negate the purpose of RAP 2.4 <u>and</u> RAP 5.3 (the Notice of Appeal). To be considered for review under RAP 2.4(c), there must be a connection between the underlying order and the order identified in the Notice of Appeal.

Here, there is none. Mr. Devin only attempted to appeal from the stand-alone January 3 Order on Reconsideration denying his December 31 Motion for Reconsideration, which sought reconsideration of the December 20 order denying: (1) Mr. Devin's December 19 Motion for Reconsideration, which reconsideration of the trial court's December 14 denial of his motions to compel and stay; and (2) Mr. Devin's December 19 motion for the court's approval of the Revised Complaint. Convoluted as that may be, these are the entire universe of "underlying" pleadings associated with the January 3 Order on Reconsideration identified in the Notice of Appeal. The SJ Orders are <u>not</u> part of this universe. As such, the Court of Appeals correctly concluded RAP 2.4(c) did not provide a basis for the court to review the SJ Orders.

Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal did not properly seek review of the SJ Orders, and the Court of Appeals properly determined there was no basis under RAP 2.4 for it to review the SJ Orders. The Court of Appeals properly granted Respondents' motions to dismiss Mr. Devin's appeal. Consequently, this Court should deny Mr. Devin's Petition for Review of the Court of Appeals' ruling.

#### D. Mr. Devin's Position is Inaccurate and Without Merit.

Mr. Devin's Petition conveniently avoids any discussion of the elephant in the room, *i.e.* the clear and ambiguous language of Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal and the attached stand-alone January 3 Order on Reconsideration. The Petition offers no discussion regarding the language of the Notice of Appeal, its reference to CR 59, nor the attached order. None.

Because the Notice of Appeal creates a hole he simply cannot dig out of, Mr. Devin completely ignores it and, instead, focuses on the SJ Orders<sup>2</sup> and his various conspiracy theories. Rather than explaining why his Notice of Appeal did not identify or attach the SJ Orders, Mr. Devin simply makes up his own reality and *falsely* tells the court, "it is patently clear that the Notice of Appeal referred to an Order that included the Dismissal on the Merits." Petition, p. 4.<sup>3</sup>

The proposed S.I.Order

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The proposed SJ Orders were presented to the trial court prior to the December 14, 2018 hearing and, therefore, contained all of the issues anticipated to be addressed by the trial court. However, the SJ Orders were not executed by the court until January 3, 2019. At this point the court had ruled on, and denied, Mr. Devin's motions to stay, compel and for approval of the Revised Complaint. CP 183.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> It is curious that Mr. Devin would make such a blatantly false statement to the Court when the Court can clearly read the language in the Notice of Appeal. CP 255-257.

The Notice of Appeal is two sentences. Its text states, *in its* entirety, as follows:

NOW COMES PLAINTIFF DAVID W. DEVIN to seek review by Washington State Appellate Court DIVISION II, District 2 of the ORDER entered on January 3, 2019 denying his Motion for Rule 59 Relief in this matter.

A copy of the decision is attached to this notice. CP at 255.

The text of the "Order on Reconsideration" attached to the Notice of Appeal states, in its entirety:

THIS MATTER comes before the Court upon Plaintiff David Devin's "Motion for the Court To Re-Consider" ('Motion"). Mr. Devin seeks reconsideration of Judge Olsen's Order denying his prior Motion for Reconsideration, issued December 20, 2018.

In considering this Motion, the Court has reviewed the file and records therein. The Court having concluded that the Motion states insufficient basis for reconsideration under CR 59, it is hereby

ORDERED that Plaintiffs Motion is DENIED.

The Notice of Appeal and Order make absolutely no reference, never mind a "patently clear" reference, to the SJ Orders, the summary judgment motions, CR 56, or a dismissal on the merits. Neither of the SJ Orders is attached to the Notice of Appeal.

The clear and inescapable truth, memorialized in black and white, is that Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal only sought review of the January 3 Order on Reconsideration denying his December 31,

2018 Motion for Reconsideration. Mr. Devin simply did not appeal the SJ Orders and, despite his best efforts, he cannot manufacture any facts to change this reality. Mr. Devin's false and unsupported proclamations do not alter the objective facts before this Court. As a result, what is "patently clear" is that Mr. Devin's Notice of Appeal was (and is) fatally flawed. The Court of Appeals correctly determined that RAP 2.4(c) did not provide a basis for it to review the SJ Orders and it properly dismissed Mr. Devin's appeal.

#### VI. CONCLUSION

Based on the above, BONYM requests this Court deny Mr. Devin's Petition for Review.